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CITY OF RICHMOND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

REPORT TO COMMITTEE

TO: Planning Committee DATE: March 9, 2000
FROM: Joe Erceg

Manager, Development Applications
FILE: RZ 96-001

DP 96-015
RE: 3900 to 3980 Bayview Street – Steveston Harbour Authority Property

Request by Mr. Bob Beily to Change Proposed Use (Former Riversong Inn
Development Proposal)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

That the Steveston Harbour Authority be advised that the request by Mr. Bob Beily to change the
proposed use of 3900 to 3980 Bayview Street from the Riversong Inn to a commercial
development will require a new Development Permit application in accordance with the
Richmond Official Community Plan (OCP), Steveston Area Plan and Steveston Commercial
(Two-Storey) District (C4) zone.

Joe Erceg
Manager, Development Applications
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STAFF REPORT

ORIGIN

On February 3, 2000, the Steveston Harbour Authority wrote to the Mayor and Council advising
them that Mr. Bob Beily has requested to change the proposed use of 3900 to
3980 Bayview Street from the Riversong Inn to a commercial development (see Attachment 1).

In addition to keeping the City informed of this request, the Authority indicated that it would like the
guidance of the Mayor and Council to this requested change.

This matter was referred to the Urban Development Division by the City Clerk for a response on
February 10, 2000 (see Attachment 2).

The purpose of this report is to present the Planning Committee and Council with the background
of this development proposal and staff’s position on the proposed change in land use.

FINDINGS OF FACT

The four subject properties, totalling approximately 2,046 m2 (22,025 ft2), are located on the
water side of Bayview Street between No. 1 Road and 1st Avenue (see Attachment 3).  These
properties are currently vacant, although they are used for off-street parking.

Council approved the rezoning of 3900 to 3980 Bayview Street from Light Industrial District (I2)
to Steveston Commercial (Two-Storey) District (C4) on July 15, 1996
(Rezoning Application 96-001; Bylaw No. 6636).

To the north, are another two properties (3971 Bayview Street and 12280 1st Avenue), totalling
approximately 1,203 m2 (12,953 ft2), owned by the Steveston Harbour Authority that are also
zoned Steveston Commercial (Two-Storey) District (C4).  These two lots are currently leased by
the City as a public parking area.

The intent of the Steveston Harbour Authority is to enter a 49-year lease with Mr. Bob Beily on
both 3900 to 3980 Bayview Street and 3971 Bayview Street/12280 1st Avenue.

Council approved Development Permit 96-015 on November 25, 1996.  This Development
Permit was for a 26 room, two-storey hotel on 3900 to 3980 Bayview Street and a
551.3 m2 (5,934 ft2) two-storey building with commercial space on the ground floor and office
space with a dwelling unit on the second floor on 3971 Bayview Street and 12280 1st Avenue.

RELATED POLICIES AND STUDIES

Consistent with the rest of the Steveston commercial area, the Richmond Official Community
Plan (OCP) designates the subject properties as Neighbourhood Service Centre on the
Generalized Land Use Map.

This designation is defined as “Those areas of the City which are intended to accommodate the
shopping, personal service, business, entertainment, recreational, and community facility and
service needs of area residents, and may include residential uses”.
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The Steveston Area Plan designates the subject area as Commercial, which is defined as
“Those areas of the City where the principal uses are directed toward providing the retail,
business and personal service, recreational, entertainment, and short-term accommodation
needs of the community and travelling public.  Commercial areas may also include residential
uses in marinas”.
Both the Richmond Official Community Plan and Steveston Area Plan have various
Development Permit Guidelines for a commercial development on the subject properties.

STAFF COMMENTS

On November 9, 1999, Mr. Bob Beily wrote to the Urban Development Division advising the City
that he had requested the Steveston Harbour Authority to change the proposed use of 3900 to
3980 Bayview Street from an inn to a commercial development (see Attachment 4).

This matter was discussed with the Planning Committee on December 8, 1999, with Mr. Beily in
attendance (see Attachment 5).

The Urban Development General Manager responded to Mr. Beily’s letter on
December 13, 1999 (see Attachment 6).

Basically, staff’s position is that the change in the proposed use of 3900 to 3980 Bayview Street
from the Riversong Inn to a commercial development is consistent with the Richmond Official
Community Plan (OCP), Steveston Area Plan and Steveston Commercial (Two-Storey)
District (C4) zoning.  However, since the development proposal has changed, a new Development
Permit will be required.

ANALYSIS

It would appear that there may be a concern regarding the possible oversupply of retail space in
the Steveston area.

Although the Steveston Harbour Authority may limit the amount of commercial development on
the subject properties, it must be recognized that the City has rezoned 3900 to
3980 Bayview Street to the Steveston Commercial (Two-Storey) District (C4) and designated
the properties Commercial in the Steveston Area Plan.

Therefore, although the City can control the form and character of the proposed commercial
development, it can not deny the proposed land use from a zoning perspective.

Council and the public will have its input into the proposed commercial development as part of
the regular Development Permit process.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

None to the City.
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CONCLUSION

The Steveston Harbour Authority has asked the City for its position on the request by Mr. Bob Beily
to change the proposed use of 3900 to 3980 Bayview Street from the Riversong Inn to a
commercial development.  Staff have no objection to this proposal provided that a new
Development Permit application is made in accordance with the Richmond Official Community
Plan (OCP), Steveston Area Plan and Steveston Commercial (Two-Storey) District (C4) zoning.

Holger Burke, MCIP
Development Coordinator

HB:blg
















